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Marcus H. Phillips, Jr. was born September 6, 1899.
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Fhillips 1

For the Orleans County Historical Association the following
interviews were conducted on May 3, 1978 by Mr. Arden R.
MeAllister,and on July 24, 1979 by Helen M, McAllister of
Medina, New York.
I, Marcus H. Phillips Junior was born in Hulberton, N.Y.,
September 6, 1899, so my age went along with the year until
my birthday in September.
To start back a ways, the Fhillips family moved from
Candor, Tioga County, to the Allis farm west of Braggs
Corners and when my grandfather, after whom I was named, was
one month old, the log cabin burned. They wrapped my grand=-
father in a blanket and put him out in the sanow, but the
Phillips femily lost their family Eible and all of their records.
About 1853, the family moved to the Budd Farm in Hulberton
because rails were getting scarce and there was plenty of

stone for stone walls. Budd was the founder of Hulberton and
had built the Medina sandstone house on the east side, the date
of which was 1848 (ingraved in a white stone above the front
door). My great-grandfather lived in the amall house across

the rﬂad which later became the manse for the Catholie church
and is still standing. My grandparents lived in the stone house.
Marcus H. Fhillips, 3Sr. married Julia E. Balcom from Erock-
ville and they had four children: John M. Phillips, Clara
Comstock, Jennie Smith, and my father Arthur H. Phillips.
Marcus and Julia lived in the stone house all the rest ol their

lives.
My grandfather was County Clerk and very well known through-

out the County. He was County Clerk for a number of years and
also served in tha New York State Assembly. Later, he ran for

T ———r e [

the New York State Senate. 1 well remember my Uncle Alan Com=

e

stock and Cousin James Balcom (both County Supervisors: Alan

from Carlton, James from Murray) reminiscing about the fact

that the night before election, there was a black carriage,

its shades drawn, drawn by a team of black horses, the driver
dressed in black, which came into this area and stopped at every
bar. A small man dressed in black, wWearing a black derby and
carrying a little black satchel, got out and went into the bar
and left a dollar for each patron of the bar. Needless to say,
my grandfather loat the election. A Wadsworth from Geneseo

became Senator. Thus a man who was widely known and hagd estab
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lished a reputation as being sincere, honest and very capable
came to the end of his politicsl career, Grandfather had many
powerful connections in Albany and continued to go there often
on business for himself and in the interest of others until he
was in his 80s. When on one of his New York Central train trips
he had what the family talked of as & slight stroke.

People used to come to him to draw up deeds, mortgages
and other legal papers, which he never charged them for. Grand-
father and Attorney Herbert T. Reed (later of Signor, Reed,
and Signor of Albion), who was born and grew up across the

road from this house, whom Grandfather had placed in an Albion
law office to atudy law, used to appear before the Fublic
Service Commiassion many times in order to get the best possible
trolley service for Hulberton and other towns along the Buffalo-
Lockport-Rochester trolley.

When the principals were waiting in the hall for the hearing
to begin and the arguments would get too heated, Grandfather
would break in, get them quieted, tell a story which would
have them all laughing. Grandfather looked pretty sharp with
his whiskers and small goatee, and on three different occasions
was mistaken for Ulysses S. Grantl

Another story about my Grandfather that I very well remember
was told to me by Jennie Moore who lived next door and who was
93 years old when she died last fall (1977). She said that in
Rochester they were going to build a new Post Office. Une

faction wanted it on the west side of the river, and the other

wanted it on the east side. The West faction employed my Grand-
father to lobby for, as she said, West side of the river. He
was successful, and the first Poat Office was built where he
had worked to get it. In return for this, the Hochester people
gave him $2,000. She says that when he recelved the $2,000.,
he built the horse barn with the gambrel roof, which is one of

the earliest gambrel-roof barns in this part of the country and

very well proportioned with a large cupola, two windows each
direction, hollow copper driving wind vane on its pea<. Having
grown up here, I did not appreciate this barn until about 1967
when three men who had visited all the big horse farms in the
country came in to make inguiry of me. They started looking the

barn over and telling me about it. It hag
8 cobblestone flo
or
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all the way through it, a six foot cobblestone porch out in
front of the big front doors, the siding is vertical boards
with battons having O gee edges. Three windows in the peak of
the barn are four leaf clovers, and the horse stalls all have
four leaf clover wWindows. It hasa a cupola about eight by ten
feet with two windows opening on each side, and a hollow
copper driving horse for a wind vane on its peak. From this
cupola, Lake Ontario can be seen and when weather conditions
are right, the Canadian shore scross the [j0 mile lake.

Both my aunts and my father (Arthur Phillips) attended
Brockport Normal School; also my Uncle John Phillips. It was
there that my father met Jessie benedict. They married and
built the home on the west side of the street in Hulberton
where we lived.

The farm operations were carried on from the atone house

where my grandparents lived. The horses, equipment, and all of
those things were kept there. The farm comprised nearly 200
gacres with the addition of several smaller neighboring farms
wnich were purchased at various times.

I have two brothers. 1 am the eldest, William next, and

Harold next. Harold died several years ago.
I have two children: Marcus H. Phillips III, and Ann
Phillips Drechsel. My son "Marc" has two children: Linda and

——

BEruce. Karen, the eldest one, died at about five years of age

of leukemia., My daughter married J. Andrew Drechsel and they
Andrew,
Duncan

live in Tenafly, New Jersey. They have three sons:Richard,
My brother, William Phillips, has two children: Hanford
Fhillips, who lives in the cobblestone house north of Hulberton,
and Sally who lives in East Liverpool, Ohio.
I attended the three-room school in Hulberton until the
last half of the Bth grade when 1 went to Holley where I gradua-
ted from High School in 1916. The next year I attended R.B.I.
(Hochester Business Institute) tsking commercisl, or book-

keeping course. Then for two years when help was very scarce
during the later part of World War I, I was home on the farm.
In 1919 1 started in Cornell Agricultural College, and gradua-
ted in 1923. Following that, I started inspecting fruit on the
New York Centrsl railroad lines until the first of the year.
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January 2, 1924 I started in the Urleans County Trust
Company in Albion, New York. The year before it had been the

Urleans Gﬂunty National Bank, owned by the Hart family and used

mainly for their own investments. A group of Albion men had
bought the National Eank and changed it to a Truat Company
about & year before. At that time the Bank was locatad cn the
south-west corner of Main and Bank Streets. They had already

purchased the block on the north-west corner and were remodeling

it. The vault was completed and the nine ton door installed,

1 think about June, when wWwe started taking our money over to

the new vault nights and bringing it back mornings, across

Bank Street. (NOTE: See M.H.FPhillips other transc't on BANKING) .
In 1925 1 married Doris Jessie Hud;;11 and we lived in

Albion from that time on: 17 1/2 yearas at 138 South Main Street

in the red brick house just below the hill on the west side,

the house having a porte co-chere. Then in 1950, we moved to

the Wheeler Homestead just south-weat of Kanona in Steuben

County where we lived for 15 years until 1965 when we moved
back to Hulberton to the Phillips stone house which I had
inherited from my father about six and & half years before.
Doris and I have lived here since that time.

The Medina sandstone guarries, of which Hulberton was in the

center, were coming into their b?ageat operation sbout the time

when I was a young boy. They were operated at first by the

English, then the Irish; the English and the Irish giving way
to the Italians. When I was a small boy in the first room in
the school, 1 have a picture that shows me beside 18 and 19

year old Italian boys, practically full grown, standing several
times as tall as I. My Aunt, Jennie Fhillips Smith, taught

this room. The Italians had just moved to this country from
Italy and could talk practically no bBnglish. They were very
poor, they were hard workers. The quarry operations took them
from spring through summer and fall but left them unemployed
during the winter when they would congregate in Moore's Gro-

cery Store (now a home) on the north side of the canal, east

of the highway, and talk in Itselian.
Most of the Italians were Catholic and there was no way
for them to get to Holley (four miles) or to Albion (seven

Miles) to attend church. In order to give them a place of
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worship, the Catholic Dicocease built the Hulberton Saint
Rocco's Catholic Church. It was built of the native brown
Medina sandstone, the cornerstone of which says it was laid

in 1906. The stone was furnished by the quarry operators.
The cutting was done by the Italian block-breakers and stone
cutters who cut the curbstone. Those days they worked a ten
hour day in the quarry. They had Saturday afternoons and
Sundays off. The quarrymen, blockbreskers and stone cutters
all helped in building the church, beside cutting the stone.
They would work on holidays and on Saturday afternoons. They
hired an expert who knew how to mix the mortar and he would
direct the opersation. They had scaffolds. I can remember them
wheeling the stone and the mortar up the remps onto the scaf-
folds, up for the height of that building. The stones are laid
in Ashler style and it is a very fine building. The first
priest, a very capable man, came here from Batavia and later
went way up in the Catholie Church in Buffalo. This church
operated for quite & number of years.

when they came, the Italian people were very poor and
Moore's Store carried many of them thru the winter on credit,
recorded in the old McCasky Register. It was years before
only one or two of them had a horse and buggy. The Italians
were thrifty, hardworking people and not at all prone to go on
relief. Each family tended to its garden. The smell of garlic
was usually quite pronounced on their breath. Spaégtti was &
main food, and to make the paste they grew tomatoes. These
were mashed and put on flat pans, boards, or anything flat and
clean that would hold them, and then put out in the sun to dry;
anyplace where the dogs could not reach, even on the roof of
the threa-holar!f}tirred occasionally, this would dry slowly
and when moisture had evaporated out, the paste would be canned
for use until the next season's crop. The first chee-chee beans
1 remember seeing were in the garden of the DeLill family who
lived in the house on the Phillips-scquired "Littlefield
Place" farm which had made the south boundary of the Phillips
farms on the west side of the Hulberton Road. This house my

Dad later rebuilt into & packing house for peaches and sapples.
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The front portion, with its roof rebuilt, is a shed and is

painted red and still in use.
The Hochester, Lockport and Buffalo Trolley went through

and started operation in 1908. On the first car, which went
west, my father took me to Albion and we returned on a later
car. I was eight years old. This new transportation east and
west was a great advantage to the whole area. The trolleys
ran each way about every hour and there were "LIMITED" cars
which only stopped at the main stations, and Grandfather made
sure all stopped at Hulberton. In fact, I went to Holley High
School on the trolley. It was always a battle to make sure
that the express cars stopped in Hulberton, one in which Grand-
father always figured... going before the Public Service Com-
mission. As I remember, the "LIMITED"s always stopped in
Hulberton!

To get bhack to the quarries, the gquarry with which I was
most familiar was the Klondike which is straight down back east
of the Phillip's barn at the end of the lane, a little bit to
the north. The Klondike Quarry was one of the earliest quarries
and operated 2l hours a day with carbide lights. It got its
name from the Klondike gold rush.

Later my grendfather, Marcus Fhillips, started a quarry
on the Phillips farm a little ways south-east of the farm
buildings. This was operated by John and William Henry Balm-

forth, two Englishmen. The only access to this quarry was through

the farm yard., The road that served the barns went around the
shop and down bagk to the quarry. The workmen, when they came
in the morningé{%ll the loads of stone were drawn out through
the yard. How my grandmother ever lived with the two and a half
inches of dust that used to accumulate in the summertime, I1'l1l
naver HKnow!

Another thing that I remember about the quarry was that the
quarrymen wore wool shirts that were, without any exaggeration,
one quarter inch thick! They had an oval yoke on the front,
probably all came from Moore's Store. The reason they wore
these heavy wool shirts was that the perspiration would evapo-

rate from the outaide and keep them cool. Later on, when the
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boys got to operating in the quarries, they'd be working in
their BE.V.D.'s. (underwear). By the "boys", I mean the grand-
children. by this time, they had realized that tuberculosis

had become a common disease with the stone cutters from breathing
so much stone dust. 5o, the desirability of working in the

gquarries greatly diminished about that time.

The quarry as 1 remember it, had sbout seven or eight
feet of dirt which hed to be removed from on top. That was
called "stripping" and was done with teams of horses. Men would
shovel the dirt onto the wagons, which had dump boards, about
three inch sgquare boards with the ends rounded for handles.
They would take them up on the dump, 1ift one board at a time
and dump the dirt. Later they had quite sophisticated dump
wagons which would self-dump when they pulled a lever. Then
they could crank the bottoms back up in place. Beneath the
dirt there would be one layer of layer stone which was used for
curbing and other purposes, and some for sidewalks. Some of the
very amooth sidewalks in this town came from those quarries.
Below that were either two or three layers for eight feo ten
feet deep, of solid stone. Originally the drilling had to be
done by hand. The hansérills were about five foot long and had
a tapered handle in the center which got to be about two and a
half inches in diameter and beveled both ways to give it weight.
This, as you can realize, was rather a slow process. They would
drill the holes and then blaat with black powder. Later, they
got to using steam drills, and after that, air drills.

One of the problems of the quarry was to pump the water

out. During the winter the guarries would fill with water and
then it had to be pumped ocut in tne spring. The balmforth
Quarry had a large stationary International engine, the fly-

wheels of which were about nine feet in diameter. 1t was a
single cylinder with "make and break" ignition. The way they
started it was to prime it with gasoline, walk the spokes of
the wheel backward to get the engine against compression, snap

the breaker, asnd it would fire. wWhat seemed like an eternity

later, it would get around to the position of firing again and
then take off. That used to run a compresser from which the air
ran the various drills around the quarry. In the spring, it was

#%{NOTE: See Stanley Judwick transeript: re: QUARRIES).
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used to pump the water out of the quarry. Later after that had
worn out, they had a big International, single cylinder tractor
which performed the same operation. To make larger blocks of
atone smaller, they would drill a series of holes about 3/L4

to one inch in diameter and then put in what were called
sWwedges on each side, with a steel wedge between. They would
put these in all the holes and then drive them, one after the
other, until the stone finally broke, which it usually did with
the grain. The stone had to be cut to sizes that could be hand-
led where it stood in the quarry. The big problem was getting
it out to the surface of the ground where the blockbreskers

and the stone cutters could eut it into the proper dimensions,
In the early days this was all done by horse power and wagons.
The wagons which drew the stone out of the guarry were known

as "swing wagons" which were very heavy bedded, hung beneath
the back axle and pivoted beneath the front axel with two large
bolts like interlocking screweyes. This made a low wagon which
could be easily loaded and unloaded.

My memory of the guarry cperation was when it was a large
quarry and they would break the blocks on the edge of the quarry,
throwing the chips over into the quarry to fill it up so that
there would not be the large ares that would require pumping
out. The curb was drawn up the lane and cut in the shade of &
row of black walnut trees which my Dad had planted when he was
22 years old. The cut and finished curbs were drawn on these
swing wagons, either to Fancher and loaded on Falls Eranch of
the New York Central trains (which was a very difficult opera-
tion), or loaded onto boats at the docks amlong the canal. The
paving blocks were cut and loaded into dump wagons and taken

to Fancher and loaded onto gondola cars, or loaded ontc canal
boats at the docks.

There were two other guarries near the hlondike: one north

of it towsrd the canal, and one north-east. When I was real
young, they brought in what was called a "channeler" which, as
the name implies, cut a atraight channel through the stone
instead of drilling every little ways and blasting. This chan-
neler ran on railroad rails which, as I remember 1t, were about
eight feet apart. To move it forward required ten horses. The

horses for this purpose were stabled in the carriage house
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part in the front of our gambrel roof horse barn for quite a
period of time. They put wagon dump=-boards between them to
keep them separated, and had mangers along both sides where
they fed them,

During the Firast World War, I remember that this machine
was setting just south of the canal on its rails. It was dis-
mantled and shipped out for scrap iron, which was very badly
needed,

I believe that it was about 1907 when the Syndicate was
formed. The syndicate brought in outside capital from New York
and other places and purchased a number of quarries with the

idea of having a central quarry operation. When I was very young,
the land in back of the Phillip's Quarry belonged to the Syndi-
cate. The Klondike and the other two quarries were located on thi.
property. The land around the three quarries which were not opera
ting was rented by my father and used for a cow pasture. The land
gouth of it, he farmed. Alsc what waes known as the "poplar tres
lot" to the west of it, was farmed. I can remember riding on a
bean-puller, sitting in a tool box on the divided tongue when my
Dad was pulling beans there when I was a very small boy.

The Syndicate was run, in my recollection, by Ed Fancher who
had a great deal to do with my grandfather during those times.
They were always conferring about something or other. Ed ran the
Syndicate for quite a number of years and then later it was taken
over by Schuyler Hazard, also of Albion. The details of the
Syndicate operation are in the office of the Orleans County )
Higtorian and is filed under QUARRIES; information which Luecy
Fancher has given.

The Clark Moore Quarry in recent years became the Medina
Sandstone Quarry Incorporated. (Clark Moore lived next door to th
stone house, was & principal in the grocery store, and later
opened the quarry). Back when I was a small boy they dug the

Barge Canal and this reguired considerable amount of dirt to

be drawn in. So they opened a barrowing pit where Clark Moore's
Guarry later was started. The dirt was loaded by steam shovel
onto little dump cars which were drawn by & donkey engine over
into the canal and to the west to fill in the north canal bank
is all I remember asbout it. But this removed the dirt above the

stone. This depression filled with water and my brothers and I
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used to go over there and swim in the pond. A number of years
later, Clark Moore opened the qguarry as an operation and quar-
ried it for quite & number of years, After the death of Clark
Moore it was closed.

Then when I came back from Steuben County in 1965 I met
Gregory ("Greg") Monacelli whom I had always known, cn the

street in Albion and asked him how things were going. Gregory
aaid,"You probably know that the stone ran out of my Dad's
quarry (which was the old Eagle Harbor Quarry) and I went down

to operate the Moore Quarry."

And this is a quotation: "The
stone in the Moore Quarry was so hard that it busted me and I
had to put a mortgage on my house". Two or three years after
that the man who owned the Greater buffalo Press came down and
bought the Moore Quarry and operated it for a number of years.
In stripping to the scuth, toward my north line, they put
the stone over to the north and filled the original Moore Quarry.
Later they built a large building back beyond the quarry where
they installed foundations for two saws. They installed one
large German built saw which operatea for a number of years.
The two saw foundations were built resting on the solid stone.
They drove piles down to the stone, cut them off at the proper
height, and welded a large plate on the top of each one. These
plates were incorporated in the concrete foundation for the
saw. The saw itself was an immense electrically driven saw:
the blades about six inches deep and sbout twelve feet long.
The difficulty was that as the saw fed down, the stone was so
hard that the bottom of the saw would heat up and expand and the
saw would wander. They had great difficulty in overcoming this.
About that same time, they installed a crusher way out
behind what had been my property. This was just before the
building of Route 18 and intended to supply the foundation
for the highway. 1t is my recollection that they were a little
kit late so that they didn't get the contract for the whole

-+

thing. Later when 1 asked Howard Michaels (the Quarry boss)

about getting various size stone from this operation, he said
that it was set up to give the mix which was proper for a high-
way foundation, to change it over so that they could get different
sizes of stone in the process would cosat $150,000. or better.

S50 that was the reason they didn't do it.
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Clark Moore's widow, Jennie Eenson Moore who died last fall
(1977) at the age of 93, lived in the house just south of the
Fhillip's stone house, was always talking about the Moore

quarry. So about two years age 1 took her in the car one
Sunday to show her the Moore Quarry. When 1 got over there to
show it to her, I had to stop and figure what had happened.
What had been the Moore Quarry had been completely filled in
with stripping from the new quarry operation, and so there

was nothing left of the Moore Quarry About four years
before, they had left that location and moved back and started
a new guarry, the north-west corner of which was the corner

of the o0ld original Klondike @uarry. The man who started the
quarry told me this himself! He had gone in there with a large
bull-dozer to start the operation. Before opening this quarry
they made & large stripping operation, stripping the dirt from
practically the whole field where the (original) Klondike had
been located, and piling it up to the east along the east line
so that it was cleared of dirt down to the stone. They had
opened a channel from this corner toward the east,quarrying

the stone down the depth of the first layer of layered stone,
and the two layers of solid stone. These varied in depth of
7=8=10 feet. They had slso quarried to the south meking a right
angle, and in doing so they had crossed several "seams" which
are vertical breaks, smooth as can be, the whole depth of the
guarry. These ran from the east-north-east to the west-south-
west. The original seam they had located from the Squire's
Quarry across the canal, had come across through the Moore
Quarry, across my horse barn, and the corner of Jennie Moore'ls
house. These other seams were parallel to this originael. OF
course, in this day of operation, the following of & seam was
not as important as it used to be back in the old days. In the
Fhillip's Quarry I don't remember that there was any seam.
uring the first years of operation, before installation
of the saw, they took immense blocks of stone on big semi-flat-
bed trucks to Euffalo where they were cut for curbing and
varicus operations. It seems that the stone cutters in bBuffalo

had some hold on the installation of curbing as long as they
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could supply it. The guarry company was supplying the stone to
the curb cutters and it was used in bBuffelo during this time.
After installation of the saw they gave up this quarr?ﬁg of the
stone and drawing it to Buffalo for cutting.

In 1976 the gquarry was re-activated. There were two contracts:

one contract for putting stone slong both sides of the canal
from Albion east. This reguired comparatively small stone. The
other contract was for bullding a dam, a retaining wall at
Lackawanna so that the material which was dredged from the
bottom of the Buffalo harbor could be dumped behind it for a
fill, as they could no longer dump it out in the lake. With
these two contracts it was ideal because the top layer of
layered stone was blasted and broken up and trucked to use along
the canal. The two layers of solid stone were quarried for the
job at Lackawanna. They would blast off about a six foot strip
of rock and break it into large pieces which the smaller would
be 5-10 tons, then 10-15% tons, and 15-20 tons; some going as
large as 22 tons. These were quarried and drawn by pay-loaders
up a road to the nortn and sorted into the wvarious szizes and
piled along the canal bank. As they were drawn out they were
weighed and the weight marked on each stone. They did this with
electronic scales which weighed one end of the pay-loader and
then the other on each load, and then arrived at the weight.
They started loading the stone on large steel scows which they
loaded with an immense crane. The first crane was a hundred
ton crane, and that would tip when they brought the stone out
over the scow. So they brought in a new crane, and on the side
of this new crane was "FMC" (Food Machinery Corporation) trade-
mark. 5o you can see how diviserfied they had become. They had
taken the smaller stone and put in thne bottom and then as they
got toward the top of the water tuey put in larger stone. The
last stone being the very large ones.

Also during this process, the year beforae, they had built

———————

tne two piers down at Point breeze in the same manner, replacing

the old originel piers which, as a boy, 1 remember were out
there: the west pier terminating in a light-house. These plers
were built, and then a conerete walk with a post embedded in

its center, all the way out. Just beyond the end of these piers
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they built a header to give protection from the waves and the
storm, and make it so that a boat could enter the harbor from

either the east or the west,

(This is the end of the first interview with
Mr. Marcus Phillips, with Kr. McAllister interviewing.

The following interview was conducted by Helen
Mcallister of ledina, and are vignettes of the
early 1ife of Mr. Harcus Fhillips).

Back in the early days of the old crie Canal, Hulberton had an
overhead bridge with approaches on both sides. On the south
side, weat of the highway, right north of the present house,
the "back street" went through to the wesat and, north of that,
stood a two-story Medina Sandstone building, the upper floor
of which was used for living quarters and the downstairs for
years, during my memory, was used for a meat market by Jay

Burns. Back before that time it had been used as a grocery
store by the Curwins. Thus there were two grocery stores in
Hulberton. When the Hepublicans were in power, the Fost Office
was in Moore's Store, east side, north of the canal. When the

Democrats were in power the Fost Office was moved over to the
Curwin's stone building, north of the stone building. At the
side of the bridge approach there were two or three one-story
amall wooden buildings of which one was a cobbler's shop. When
the Barge Canal came through, they left the north bank approxi-
mately in the same location so as not to disturb Moore's Store
or the Hotel on the west side of the highway, and widened the
canal to the south. So this did away with all these buildings
including the stone store.

On the Eric Canal the tow path went along beneath the north
end of the overhead bridge; but when the Barge Canal with its

lift-bridge was put through, it was put through with the ides
that there would no longer be mules and horses towing boats.
Everything would be mechanized. bBut for a number of years there
were still horse-drawn boats; so a wooden road-way was built

out into the canal tc make room for the horses and mules to go

along after the 1lift-bridge was raised. while the new 11l t-

bridge was being installed, during the canal-closed season,

they used the back street and put a temporary wooden bridge
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across the cansal with 2 by I, inch wooden rails. When this wooden
bridge wss 1in use Fred Cole drove the team of grey horses up

from the north farm to do something up here in Hulberton. When

he came to the canal, when the horses were crossing this canal
bridge, the horses suddenly reared up on their hind legs, crowded
against each other and it's a wonder they did not go into the
canal. It was a terrifying experience for Cole. When it came

time for Cole to go back across the canal to get home, the horses
started doing the same thing. Finelly my Dad, who was now
accompanying Cole, had the inspiration that they change sides
with the horses. That worked perfectly! They walked scross the
bridge, and no problems. Clark Crawford and Newell Albee, the

nired men from the Hulberton homestead were also accompanying
Fred Cole and my Dad. This team of "CUE" who was born the day
Marcus H. Phillips, Jr. was born, and"STAR" were lanky 1450
pound horses, both HBllﬂeranbbE my Grandfather, M,H.Phillips,
Senior, were ordinarily perfectly dependable. Apparently they
were scared by the narrow board-rattling bridge with its flimsy
railings.

THE STORY OF THE SAILING ICE-BOAT

When my father, Arthur Fhillips, waes a young man he built
an ice-boat from instructions in Fopular Mechanics magazine. It
had three runners: the front runners were spread out, probably
about eight feet wide, and then one runner in the back which
had a tiller lever attached so it could be steered. Like a
sailboat this had a mast with a jibe-sgil in front and the big
saill behind which would sail just exactly like & sailboat. This
boat could be teken apart and wrapped and tied into a package.
He would take it to the canal in Hulberton on & windy day and
go to Hochester on the canal. Eack in those days most of the
bridges were overhead and he could sail under them. When he
came to a swing-bridge (I don't believe there were any 1ift-
bridges; I think there were only swing-bridges) they would be
too low. Zo he would tade the mast down to get underneath the
bridge and replace it, so he could sail all the way to LKochester.
When he got to his destination in Hochester, he would take down
the mast, taxe his sailboat apart, wrap it in s big package, get
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a dray which was & wagon drawn by two horses, to come and load
it on and tske it to the New York Central railroad station
where he would have it shipped on the Falls branch of the New
York Central back to Fancher, New Yor<, a mile and tnree guarters
from home. Then, from there, he would bring it home.

Around the mast this boat had a flat section where a person
could ride. On the back there was & raised seat over by the
tiller where a person could pull on a hand brake, which was an
iron spike that could be pulled, and go into the ice and slow
the ice boat down some.

When I was a boy with my two brothers, my father and the
three of us pulled the ice boat against the wind the mile and
three fourth to Erockville where we turned around. The two
brothers rode on the ice boat along with Dad. I had my big
Flexible Flyer sled and towed it behind on a long rope. Dad
said that just before he got to the Hulberton 1ift bridge,
when he got around the bend to Hulberton he would stop and that
I wanted to be sure that I was not fast to that Flexible Flyer
sled because the boat would stop and I would keep right on
going!! So we came down the canal. Everything worked fine. We
travelled very rapidly. When we got around the last bend before
the Hulberton 1lift bridge by the Ford house, Dad turned the
ice~boat sharply in to the left bank, and as the mast came over
he s1id off the boat onto the ice and took the mast into his
arms, which tipped the boat up on edge. My Flexible Flyer sled
kept on going to the end of its rope and then stopped, but I
kept right on sliding down the canal ice on my stomach!! (laughter
That was really my only experience in ice-boating.

F &R EF A e A R B E S e &

At our annual New Year's Ealcom family reunion where we would
nave from 45-50 people, 1 can remember the older members talking
about the old canal which was four feet deep and 1 foot wide,
and they would have their hcrsaaﬂahéd which means that the toe-

caulk of the horae shoes were sharp; and both heel caulks came
to a point so that the horse could walk on the ice or travel

on the ice without slipping. In those days they would go out
onto the cenal, this was before the deeper drie Cansl, and drive
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to Albion on the ice rather than take the roads. Also some of
the people who had fast horses used to race their horses on

the canal!

SKATING ON THE ICE

My first skating was done with old curl-toed skates. They
were made with a metal runner and a wooden top and the front
of the metal runner curled up around and back. They screwed
onto the heel, and the front part through a slot in the wood
was strapped over the toe. That was my first experience.
Marcus, when you screw a skate into your shoe, the heel of the
shoe, wouldn't that ruin your shoes?

No, it just made a hole in the center. As I got older, I had a
pair of clamp skates which had a lever on the side and when
properly adjusted and you pulled this lever back, it would pull
clamps back against the back corners of the heel as well as
against the sides of the sole and the ice skates would stay on
very well. Then in later years 1 had skates with shoes attached
to them.

But to go back to the days of my clamp skates, Holley was
four miles by road: two miles south and two miles east. The canal
went diagonally at about three 1/ miles, probably on account
of the many bends. When the ice was good and we wanted to go to
school, instead of taking the trolley, we would go down to the
canal and skate to Holley. There were places along where there
were air holes where you had to be careful because the water
wouldn't freeze. If you got into one of those, you went right
down to the bottom of the canal, which wasn't very deep in most
places (a few inches to one foot). Uown by the Squires Quarry
east of Hulberton, there was a place there where the rock was
& little higher than the rest of the cansl and when it was
frozen real hard there would be a strip of ice about three to
four inches wide so that you could skate between the rocks.
Sometimes, if it had thawed a little bit, you had to walk over
the rocks to get by this particular spot. Then when we got to
Holley, we would take our skates off under the east bridge and
go right past the trolley station and walk up to school,
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Now, back in the skating days, the greatest skater in these
parts was my grandmother's brother, Darwin balcom, known to

everybody as "Dar" Balcom. When he was over 75 years old, Uncle
Dar used to skate with his hands behind his back. He wore
curl-toed ice skates like I have described to you, had them
excellently sharpened. He was an expert at that and he would
skate into the wind, bent way forward, with his hands behind

his back, faster than anybody else around this part of the
country. Also, when you came to a skate stroke that went from
one side of the canal to the other side and then back the full
distance, there was just one person had made that stroke: and
that was Uncle Dar Ealcom!! Harry Prince who lived in Hulberton

and was considerably younger than my Dad, used to skate very
well and he would make long strokes. But he used to laugh that
he couldn't even approach the length of Dar Ealcom's strokes.

One time when people used to skate for pleasure up in
Albion, the society people would get on the canal on a Sunday
afternoon, .a1l1 dressed up, and skate. Uncle Dar bslcom and his
son Marc skated up to Albion. While they were there, he knew
all the people, and some of the boys, young boys (Gerald Fluher
who later became County Judge and some of the boys) got to

kidding Marc about his curl-toed skates. Uncle Dar finally

said to them," Well you know boys, he can skate to that next
bridge faster than you can!" Oh they laughed at that; they just
knew better. So Uncle Lar unwound the scarf that he had around
his neck and criss-crossed under his arms, it was about 12 feet
long, and handed one end of it tc young Marc. He took the other
end and towed Marec to the next bridge, way ahead of the other
boys! So the laugh was on them!!

REUNIONS

Since I was about eight years old I remember the family
reunions that we used to have. The various families would get
together and there would be 45 - 50 of us. They would be members
of the Balcom femily, which was my Crandmother's family. Horace
came in 1812 to Brockville. They would meet at the Balcom
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homestead north of Fancher, the Jim bHalcom homestead down by

the mill dam on the west side, the Fhillips homestesd where 1

now live in Hulberton, or the Nelscn homesatead east of Hulberton

Hoad north side of Telegraph Hoad where the Tinkous now live,
Also we would meet over at my Aunt Clara and Uncle Allen Com=-
stalk's on the Sawyer Hoad over north of the Ridge Hoad. These
reunions always came on New Year's Day and regardless of the

weather the families would all come, either in their buggy,
their surry, or their Democrat Wagon pulled by horses, or in a
sleigh, or if there were a number of them they would come in
a8 bob-3leigh which would have two or three seats acrosa the
box. The food : the person that had the gathering, at whose
house it was held, furnished the main dish. But the different
families would all bring something. As I remember, chicken pie
with the biscuit crust was one of the main things. Of course
you have to remember that back in those days all butter was
homemade, bread was homemade. Practically everything we had to
eat was homemade. When we had ice cream, we had an ice cream
freezer, chopped up the ice, put the ingredients in the can in
the center, put the chopped ice around it, and turned the
crank until it froze. And then we had ice cream. You didn't
go out and buy ice cream in those days.

These family reunions laasted for & good many years until
the family got so spread ocut that we no longer had them. Cne
of the last family gatherings was held when our children were

small, down at Judson Archer's at his farm near Clifton Springs
and there were over 50 people there at that time!

R RS E RS AR R EaEaR

My wife, Doris, had a group of Cub Scouts. There were

aight of them and every Sunday when the weather was good we used
to take out the eight foot toboggzan and go usually to Fine Hill
where there was reaslly good toboggening. Those kids had the best
time sliding down that hill! One day we had a new Flexible -
Flyer sled for Ann. It was the biggest Flexible Flyer that ol
would go into the trunk of a 1939 Buick. Marc took it out on

the hill and the first thing we knew, we missed Marc and were
looking all over for him, when all of a sudden we saw Marc

on the little sled going out into space from a ski jump, over
the brow of the hill which we could not see!! (chuckles). Marc
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stayed with the sled and all landed safely and continued down
the hill. There were a few anxious moments.

Mr, Phillips, would you please tell us about your tobogganing

days while you were a student at Cornell?

Okay. When I was at Cornell we had & toboggan slide that was
iced. It was a double slide and always iced on the bottom and
sides. We had a platform to put the toboggan at the top, with

a pivot so when you got ready to go you lifted the back end and
the toboggan took off and soon were on the ice of Heebe Lake.

I always had the steersman place which was on the back end of
the toboggan, on my knees, hanging onto the ropes while steering
Wwith my toes. If I do say so, I waa pretty good at it because

we never had any accidents. but you went over sixty miles an
hour going down that slide and if you got to sliding sideways
on the glare ice of Beebe Lake and should hit a frozen-in stone
or pebble, it would throw the toboggan over and bresk arms and
legs, which very often happened! Our fraternity, Alpha Gemma Rho,

had the longest toboggan on the slide. One night when I was not
along the boys went across Beebe Lake, started up the other
side and it broke the toboggan right in two; right in the
middle!! So that was the end of our nice long toboggan., A few
years ago they took down the toboggan slide so that's no longer
available to students.

L L I B B O O B RN B BN O N A

SCHOOLING

My schooling in the grades went through the three rooms
in Hulberton, except that the last half of the 7th grade 1 took
in Holley under Miss Maybe. To go to Holley School was really
a very simple thing compared to the drives with horses that
many people had. I had to walk about an eighth of a mile to the

trolley station in Hulberton and when 1 got to Holley, got off
at the station; it wes about half to three-quarters of a mile
up to the High S5chool. The trolleys ran about every hour so that
if you got kept after school for any length of time, why you
could always get the next trolley home and it worked out very
gatisfactorily.

School Principal Prof. VaenZile who taught first year Latin

and Caesar (four years of Latin was prerequisite to a college
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degree in those days) decided that 1 was not doing very well
in my declensions in the first year Latin. He had me stay over
and apend a half an hour in his office studying declensions
for several months. Frobsbly that was the only resson 1 ever
got through Latin because 1 had pretty good marks from then on.
But that meant that I had to get the next trolley home, which
was not too bad to do.

Profeasog_?anﬂile was a strict disciplinarian and in

Caesar class one day while one of the boys was cutting up in
the back of the room, the first thing I knew a Caesar book
gsailed over my head! The boy moved just in time or he would
have had it right in his face!! VanZile was an old football
player and coached football team at Holley Schocl.

Do you mean that he actually threw the book at the astudent?
Did he ever hit a student?

I don't know if he ever hit 'em with a book. I've seen him
"mop the floor" with them. He'd come up the stair outside
the big Study Hall, he'd look up over the stairs as he came,

and you didn't want to be "cutting up" when he appeared! (laughs)

I think that's what made the school amount to something back
in those days.

(END OF TAPED INTERVIEW)
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The foregoing interviews were conducted by

1. Mr. Arden MeAllister of Medina, New York

2. Helen M. McAllister of Medina, New York
After some additions and some deletions by Mr. Phillips,
Final typing and some editing was completed by

Helen McAllister (Mrs. Arden McA.) of Medina, New York.
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July 14, 1975. Helen Mcallister of Medina, N.Y. is interviewing
¥arcus H. Pnillips of Hulberton, N.Y. The second half of tnis

tape tells of Mr. Fhillips banking experisnce.

P I, Marcus Phillips, am 7H years old. I was born September 6,
1899 in Hulberton, lew Yorx. iy father was Arthur H. Fhillips

and my mother was Jeasie Lbensdict from Erockport. My grand-

father, after whom I was named, MKarcus Hanford Phillips, was

a well-known politician at one time, School Commissioner,

then County Clerx of CUrlesns County, and later Assemblyman
from Orleans County. He was well known throughout thess parts,
and very influential. Ky grandfather was a farmer, and my
father carried on the farming tradition operating about 200
acras on the home farm in Zulberton, asnd later ascquiring my

Uneles John Phillipst!' 200 ascre farm nerth of Hulberton whers

the Cobblestone house is.
The Hulberton farm was primarily a fruit farm. Back when
my brothar and I were boys, We grew up on tWo horse, tuwo whesal

cultivators, cultivating psa beans. Dad raised anywhere from

50 to 75 acrss of pesa beans every year. He took an old farm
house, right south of where the trolley track was and moved
it back and made it into a bean cleaning and picking building.

]
)

How many workers would he have hirasd?

o
o

P There were about six or eignt women smployed during the winter

months. The process was that the beans would be run through a
long encleosed tub with rotating blades, mixed with sawdust

and sand. ais the beans progressed down-grade through the
machine, 1t would polisn them and make them a clean white color.
The next thing would be they would be fed onto an inclined
belt eight feet wide and sight feet high, carried between two
rollers. The inclination of this belt could be changed and the
flat beans and the stones would carry over the top,where the
good beans wWould roll to the bottom and be ready for further
processing. Then the house had several counters, several rooms
had counters around them; they would be about 40 inches high,
covered with white canvas, the height of the new bean bags,
with holes every so far. lMen would dump the beans on the
countsr and the women would push the good beansz through a

hole near the edze into the basn bag, and throw any poor beans
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out. The men would welgh each bag to a certain fixed weight
by adding or removing beans, then sew the bag Up. .ss These
were pes beans, small white bsans.
Did your father hire the same womsn year after year, primarily?
Yes.
How did he get in touch with them?

When I was a boy, the Italiana came to Hulberton to wWork in

the stone guarries, and the Italian women would be the ones
who would come and work bean picking.

Have you any idea what the wages might have been?

I really don't remember what it would be back at that time...
It was a winter time job.

Who harvested in the summertims?

well, you are zgestting into the farming operstion now.

Dad would have two hired men on the South Farm where the
Six cow dairy supplied the Village of Hulberton with mill;
and one hired man living in the Cobblestons house on the XNorth
Farm where he xept 200 ewes bred to Shropshire Rams with big
curling horns. He raised "hot-house™ lambs very early during
the winter, which wers butchered and shipped to the lew York
City Market., Will hest, who lived on the Cresk Road norith-
east of Sandy Creek (now Murray), was "day man" all the gzood
part of the year, driving his horse and buggy to and fro.

There were two three-horse teams on the South Farm, and
two thrse-horse teams on the North Farm so during the summer
they would be busy with the planting, cultivating, cutting hay,
harvesting, and storing it in the barns in bulk in those days.
In the never biz barns with tracks and hay cars, we used
"slings" to unload the wageons; but in the smaller barns,
which were original on the amaller farms which Grandfather
merged into ths two larger ones, it wWas different. It had to
be pushed off the wagon into the barn, I well remember mowing
it away in the back with a short handled, two or three-tinsd
hay fork, with my eyea so full of sweat that I could hardly
see.,

uring the wintsr, ths besan processing would take up part

of the hired men's time.
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Let's go back to the time when you were a little youngster.
Would you tell us when and where you first went to school...?
My Aunt, Jennie Phillips Smith, taught the first room of the

new three-room scnool and was my first teacher, when I was four,.

The old one-room atone schoolhouse stood, still in good con-
dition, just in front of and to the north of the new school.
Of course, we had the girl's outhouses and the boy's,behind
and beyond the opposite ends of the new bullding. Ky Aunt was
the widow of ur, Willard Smith of Ann Arbor, Michigan. He was
a noted surgeon. My Aunt lived with my Grandparents after her

husband died, He was a noted surgeon and at the time she
married him, was the Mayor of Ann Arbor, and for several terms
before and after. He left =2 sick bed to doctor an aged patient,
had pnsumonia and died. She then returnsd to Hulberton to live
with her parents, in the Stone Housse.

There were three rooms in the Hulberton School and she

taught in the first room. When I started, I think I must have
started at four years old. I have .a school picture showing
me standing in front of the blackboard, at the back of the
room with young Italian boys, practically matured, 18-19
years old, who had just come to this country. How she ever
taught them, when she couldn't understand & word they ssaid,
or they couldn't understand a word shs said, I never have
been able to figure out. This is a fact!

Your Aunt, Jennie Phillips 3mith, taught what grades?

They went Primary through, I think it was second grades. ...
Frimary was a lot more like Kindergarten; then first and
second. I think that probabtly was it.

How long d4id you stay in that particular school?

Well, at mid-ysars when I was in the 8th grade, I left Hulberton
3chool and transfsrred to Misa Maybee's 8th grade in Holley
High School. 3o, I went there for the last half of my 8th

grade and econtinued through the four years of high school in

Holley, graduating in 1916 at the age of 16.
The next fall 1 started in Rochester Business Institute,

taking a Commercial Course, which was book-keeping and writing-
penmanship, You'd never know it after I got through taking
notes in college! Commercial Law, Business Arithmetic, a month

of typing. The Journal, Ledger, and other books of my final
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Business Practice were really a marvel of penmanship. Unfor-
tunately, I got tired of having them around and burned them
gince coming to Hulberton.

I graduated from RBI in 1917. By then help had becoms very
scarce, due to the war (WW I) and Dad persuaded me ratner
than going into the Army, to stay home and help him run the
two 200 scre farms,., The two years that I was home, I did the
cow-barn chores, Jim Charlss, an Italian boy, did the horse-
barn chores along with other work,

We nad six cows. The Phillips family supplied the milk to
the Villagze of Hulberton. Wnen 1 was a boy, ths milk was brought

in and put through s screen, through a cheesscloth filter,

into milk pans. These were tin pans about ten inches in
diameter and two and a half inches deep. The rest of the milk
was put into a cream separator which was a tall tank about
15 inches in diamster, with two glass fronts showing in it,
The same amount of water wWas put in, and ths next morning ths
water and skim milk would be drawn off the bottom leaving
the eream on top. The watersed skim milk, drawn from the separator,
would be fed to the pigs. The cream that Grandma didn't use,
was saved and shipped in five gallon cans to & cream processing
plant in Buffalo. During my second year at home, Dad bought an
Anker-Holth Cream Separator so that the milk was put through
the cream separator and the cream was very thick. My Grand-
mother always insisted on my having lots of this very heavy
cream on my morning cereal.
What kind of cersal did you have?
Catmeal, cookad overnight in a double boiler, on the back of
the coal range.

The pans of milk were placed on shelves in the pantry and
in the evening my Grandfather and Grandmother would =it in
the dining room and people would come to the dining room door
Wwith their little pails. They would usually have tickets which
they purchased for either a pint, saying on them, "pint", or
a8 quart, Grandmother would take their pail and go out and take
a pint cup, or a quart cup, end pour from the pan into the
pint or quart cup and then pour it into the pail. If the
cream had started to rise, she would firast stir the cream up

in the pan so that it would be evenly distributed. This went
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on f'or many years. Later, of course, we came tc bottles that
had people's names on them., but that was quite a few years
afterward.

Do you mean that they had their own family name on the bottle?
No; well, they'd put a -- one of them would have a button, one
of them would have something else-- their identification on
the bottle.

There was a doctor, whose name I can't remember, lived in
the Pierce house just north of the Phillips Homestead. The
name of his father-in-law, who came to live with him, and who
used to come over to Grandmothers after the milk, was Hewitt.
I always remember that he used to talk about their having
suett pudding.

(As I have said earlier) the skim milk was fed to the pigs.
The Phillips family moved to Hulberton from the Allis Hoad in
Barre in 1853. The barn which had been bullt to replace the

original log barn sbout 1835 to '30 by Joseph Eudd who was the
t

founder of Hulberton and who b tiiz Stone House, stood on

ui
the ground. The barn had been built of hewn timbers on the
ground., The Fhillips's raised it and had an sight foot stone
wall put under it.That's the way thesy always described it.
This gave a basement for a cow b slong tne front edge of
tne building. The back pari was used for either sheep or
sometimes pigs, and later for storing cabbage.

Tnere was a pig pen out back of the barn yard where they
always had a pig or two. The year that I was home, we had
twenty-two shoats on the east side of the cow barn. I carried
water from the well across the barn yard, over to the cow barn,
to the tune of 22 screaming piss, mixed it with ground barley
and put it in the trough to feed them, which would quiset them
down. (laughter).

Ferhaps at this stage I should tell you about the pet pig.

vWie nad a Chester-Whnite Sow which was very patient and very
pleasant with her pilgs. At this particular time, she had her
17 piglets up in the Peach crc“ard, which was about a guarter
of & mile south of the barns. Thers was a biec discussion as
how to get the sow and the 17 1little pizs doun to the barn.

£
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Clark Crawford who had formerly worked at an Alblon coal yard
and had basen one of Dad's hired men for several years, - Clark
said,"Well, now she is perfectly gentls, I will take and put
the pigs in a bushel basket and carry them down the road".

Most sows would est the person who tried to remove her pigs,
but this sow let Clark put the pigs in the basket. Clark,
accompanied by Dad and the three of us boys, walked down the
road and she contentedly followed him down to the barn yard
and out into the pig pen. 3o that was no problem. The pig pen
had a railing sbout six inches above the floor sll the way
around to prevent the sow from lying on her little pigs. EBut
somehow one of them got layed on and it damaged his front

legs. So, in order to doctor him and save his 1life, Grandmothsr
had the pig brought into the house and put him in & big box
wnere she fed him milk. We raised him on a bottle and he became

a family pet. ... We used to call him "Wee-wes",

I wonder why! Was he reslly tiny, or... (laughter).

Well, he was a3 biz as the other onsz but he was by himself,
you know. We let him run loose around the yard. I would come
out of the cow-barn door and he would hear me and come running

tovward me, and we wWould race to the woodahed door, or vice-

versa. It was kind of a toss-up, He ran stiff legged in front,
(demonstrates), but he sure could travel!!

dow long did your pet pig live, do you remember?

Whnen it came time to sell the pigs in the fall, they delivered
the pigs to 8 car load of pigs in Fancher. I understood that
he didn't fare very well with the other pigs because they all
picked on him. Sc that was kind of a sad ending in his lesaving
our midst, but he sure was a wWonderful pet.

You may not realize this, but a pig is the cleanest animal
there ig if he is where he can xeep himself clean. The reason
that they're always wallewing in mud is because they haven't
any other place to go. Sut if you leave them by themselves
they will keep themselves just as clean as they can bs,

In September 1919 I started Cornell Agricultural Course

-

which kept me there four ysars. During my second year, I

Joined Alpha Gamma Bho, the Agricultural Fraternity. During
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my Sophomore year I became an Assistant Instructor in the

Rural Engineering Department. The next summer while I was up
in the hay field, I received word of an urgent telephone call
from Professor Riley who wWas Head of the Department. When I

answered the 'phone, he told me that Professor Goodman (Zxten-

sion Professor in Rural Zngineering), known to everyone as
"Goodie", and Eurt Jennings, who was the chief instructor in

the Hural Engineering Department, had started out to cover
the state with a demonstration. They had had one demonstration
near bBinghamton when Burt came down with appendicitis and had
to enter the hospital there. Professor Riley wanted to know
if I would join "Goodie" at Dalton and continue on with thns
rest of the route around the State.
Just what is a demonstration?
In the first place, we had a brand nsw one ton Reo Speed
Wagon which had the artillery wooden types wheels, about thress
feet to three and a half fset in diametag with hard rubber
tires. On this we carried and then set up a demonstration
snowing how to install a hot and cold running water system
in a home. g M oop
First we set up a b&sa,bsn legs about one foot off the
ground, On the bacik edge of that, a wall about six feet high.
we would install a sink and a pitcher pump. We would pump
water into the sink, and the discharge from the sink would
g0 into a pail bensath. Then we would put a pipe on the bottom
of the sink and run the water outdoors. Then we would remove
the pitcher pump and replace it with a force pump and install
a watar storage tank on top of the wall. With this farce
purip, we would pump water up into the gravity storage tank
overinead. Then we had water coming down through a pipe to the
sink, with a faucet on the Pightjand this constituted the
cold watsr system.
To gat hot water, the water would run from this gravity
tank through a heater, usually a kerosene water heater bacx
in those days, and come to the left hand hot water faucet
in the gink,

Then we would install a toilet on the demonsiration "fleon"
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and tell about installing a sewage disposzal system. We had a
bulletin showing how teo build a conerste septic tank, a
il oy L by 8 feet long septic tank, with baffles near each end.
We would tell about the distribution from the far end into
tilajwhich would carry the water out into several paralell
lines of tilﬁjto leach into the scil, After a few demonstrations,
I would spell "Goodie" by giving the lecture. This would te
the first time many of those people had ever heard sbout any
such thing.
Actually with this demonstration we travelled all over the
rural area of New York Stats. In ths south-sastern part of
the state, the Catskills, I have seen the pgil sitting undsr
the aink in a farm house, and they carrisd tne water out.
Sometimes when distances would psrmit, we would have a
demonstration in the morning, one in the afterncon and one
the eveningz, so that we wsre on the move all the time.
The demonstrations had been scheduled way shead of time,

arant

L

gcheduled through the Farm Dureau managers of the diil

o
i
11
o
o

gountiea. So the whole thing was sst up and pla ne
thing that I ls2arned - that you ware very caraful to eat only
the best of foods, and taike no chances. Ve were fortunate in
not migsing ons demonstration, altnouzh guite a f2w were
given in the rain!

This was, to me, a very interestinz experience becauss
Professor Goodman knew all of the Farm bureau men very well,
He had a wide acquaintance throughout the state. I met very
interesting people, even gobt introduced to trout fishing on
e Delaware River, One of the places we were invited for

-

h
lunch was at the Constable :omssatssd of Constableville, Yeszrs
1a

tar this became the Constabls Museum. This is loecated on

routs #26, about 25 miles north of Rome, New ¥York.

Une of the interesting things that happened te us was that

We nad a demonstration in the morning and that sfternoon we
had ona on the opposite sids of & ranze of mountezins. 1t meant

=

that we had to go about 25 miles around the "v" to get bacxk to
bl

o
b'ﬂcam“ vary aobto T s B 57} e 5 g ! = . w Fh
gcame very steep., We got almost to the breask over, near the
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top of the hill when our apeed wWagon gave up and stopped! 3o
I stayed at the top with a bloek of wcod to put behind the
wheel if we failed again. "Goodie" backed down and tried it
over again - no luck. It had been a point of gzood natured
contention that "Goodie" weighed 225 pounds, and I weighed
150 pounds, So I said to "Goodie","If you get out snd take
the block of wood and be ready to block the wheel if I stop,
I'1l back down and get this going at the bottom, I think

I can slip the clutch and get over (the hill)". And that was
just what I did. I just barely made it over the brow of the
hill without having to go back down again, but it necesaitated
slipping the clutch to do it. I had had sxcellent training
in trying to do the imposaible wWith an slmost-powerful-enouzh
Ferdson Tractor,

while you were at colleze, you met the woman who became
your wife?
While I was a Freshman in college, I met Doris Hodwell who

was visiting her older married student brother, Ward, who with
his wife lived across the street. Doris later became my wifs

on June 27, 1925. We have two children: Karcus Zanford Phillips
IT

=

and our daughter Ann, who married J., DUrschsel and lives

L)
Tenafly, New Jersey.

e
b

Are you a Great-grandrfather?

lio, Jjust a Grandfather. Ann has three sons.

After graduation from College, did you return tc farming?
No. I started out inspecting fruit on the New York Central
(railroad) Lines with the ierchant's Dispateh Transportation

Gompany, under George Comlossy in chargze of inspection. I hsad
N s & L

a pass on all the New York Central, Biz Four Railroads.
I started inspecting in South Haven, Michigan; later inspec-
ting grapes out of Vestfield, New York. I ended up in the
nd—

winter at Big Four Central Flats Terminal in Cleveland, Chio

£

here the big railroad station now stands.
How long were you on the railroad, working as an Inspector?
About six months. It was a wonderful experience.

I can tell you an anscdote about that too. Wnile working

out of wWestfield, I coverad as far west =s Harbor Creek, Fa.
I reportsd one day that there had been some baskets of grapes

stolen out of a car at Harbor Creek. The process was that
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would break the seal on a car, record its number, climb in

and make out a report of the condition of the grapes, or the
procedure. Then I would reseal it, recording the new seal
number. The next night, I went up there again. First I stopped
in at the railroad station to inguire whethear the 3tation

Agent had heard of any developmenta. The Station Agent, upcn
learning that I was going up to look at the cars on the switch,
begged me not to go. He said,"The 'Dicks' are up there watching
those cars and the '"Dicks' shoot first and ask questions after-
wards."I could see that hes was extremsly disturbed and would

do anything to prevent my going. But I went up and left the
lights shining on the car from my Dodge Roadster, and I inspected
the grapes Jjust the same. There was no change from the previous
night. But the Station Agent was so sincere in not wanting me
to go up there because he was just acared to death that I
would get shot. Probably I was foolish!

Marcus, what are 'Dicks' ?

'Dicks' are railroad poliecemen, hired by the railroad. ...

On January 2, 1924 I came to Albion and started working
for the Orleans County Trust Company . Harry D. Bartlett,
the President of the Orleans County Trust Company, and my
father had attended Brockport Normal (School) together. Harry
had asked my father if I would like to come into the Bank.
At that time the Orleans County Trust Company was located on
the southwest corner of Main and Bank 3treets in the old Bank
Building. The year before it had been a National Bank, which
was sort of a private investment institution for the Hart
families. It had been purchased by a group of Albion peocple

including my father-in-law, James Henry Rodwell, and Sanford

Chureh, and Ramsdale, lawyers; and Louis E. 3ands,"Bean King",
and G, Ray Puller, who lived on a good farm north of Water-
port, and some others whose names I do not remember. It had

been changed over to a Trust Company and the Trust Company

was still operating in the old building with its dark, beautiful
oak trim and plate glass windows, on the scuthwest corner,.

They had already purchased the northwest corner, the "Bailey
Slock" 3 The south half to be remodeled into a bank building

and leaving the north half to "Hawks Drug Store
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During the first summer that I was there, the vault wi4s
finished and the nsw nine ton door was installed. In July or
August, I baslieve, we started carrying our money from the new
v&ultfback and forth to the old Bank Building, morning and
night. ... We carried the partitioned cash drawers that we
usad at the tellers windows (to carry the money). But the
vault was much safer, I always remembered the man who instal=-
led the bank door. He was a big mulatto; one of the biggest
men I ever saw. 1t seems as though he was big enough to 1ift
the door.

When you wWent to work at the bank, did you have any banxing
experiesnce?

I had no banking experience.

What was your job?

Maybe I'd better tell about the personnsl: Harry L. EBartlett,

former County Clerk, was President, Henry Hiler, Secretary,

his son Carl Hiler was Assistant 3ecretary, Fred Holt, Florence

sanford, and lMarian Laskowskl were already in the banit, and 1
started in at $175.00 a month., Finally getting to where I
operated a Eurrows Fosting #achine, and really came all the

way up through. Somstime during the fall we moved into the
new bank building, which was really quite a change. A Hational
or a State bank has a Cashier, A Trust Company has a 3Secretary

and Assistant Secretary. Henry E. Hiler was Secrestary, his

son Carl was Assistant 3ecretary. Fred Holt and I were Tellers.
Did most people have an account at the banx? was this a common
thing, or did people put their monejy under thelir mattress?

Did the people have faith in the banks at that time?

1 think that pecple were gsining confidence in the banks and
moat people who had any amecunt of money kept it in a bank
account. Of course there were always those who hid their money
under the mattress, or someplace like that, where they very
often lost it. The same as there are today.

liow long were you at this bank, HMr, Phillips ?

1 was at this bank about 220 and a half jyears, I believe.



Phillips 12

I really had some very remarkable experiences in the bank.

Mr. X turned out to be crooked. He was always doing sometnlns
underhanded. I remember his coming in and cashing a check at

the till - we had one cash and two teller windows - he came in
and took over my wWindow, and cashed this c¢heck on the Albion
Furniture Company for John M. —— Mr. X had a large
interest in this company. I watched the money that hs too« out.

I could count it just as well as though I'd been there doing it
myself. He gave out some, I believe, twenty-three dollars more
than the chsck called for, plus some odd cents., zventually we
caught up with ¥Mr. X. It seems that lir. X would take money

that was paild in for mortgaze interest and would pocxet it rather
than puttinz it through the books. zZventually this came to light.

I remember one time when these things wers going on, Dr. J. walds
] £ = » :

Cramer, who was the dentist in Town, of Cramser and Dellinger,

was Vice-Fresident. He was the available one who I got to talk
with, mainly about these things. Hr, X belonged to the Erociport
Yacht Club, on Lake Ontario north of Brockport, and thay wers
having their big annual party down there, I just had a feeling
that Mr. X was going to itake money out of the till to taxke down
there with him. 30, I called Dr. Cramsr and teld him of =y
suspicions. Mr. X put his money in the vault and left early.
I locked the big vault without putting the Time-Lock on. or.
Cramer came right down, and we went in and opened up the money
chest that held Mr, X's money. It was just $500.00 short! One
package of, I guess that would be twenty dollar bills. Now we
knew that lMr, X was taking money. Fortunately, the next nignt
it had been returned and his cash was okay.

Mr, X's Final Grab

(written by Marcus Fhillips; not on tape)

f Dirsctors had notified ¥r. X that he was to

1
4
41
(]
1w
3
CL
O

be terminated on a date that came on a 3aturday, probably
al 3o at the end of 3 month.
Some time during the next Monday, it was discovered thnat

r. XA after the end of the day's business on Saturday, had

issued a Nsw York Draft payable to himsell for 6,000, - tau:
. wBEAIng
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into the Eank the mortgag?éf John A, ——— covering a small
farm on the west side of the Clarendon Ejyron Road several

miles south of Clarendon, which Mr. X had s214d to A,

The draft turned out to have been cashed by the New York Bank
in which it was drawn the first thing Mondsy morning, so the
Bank was hooked with the mortgege of a ner-do-well farmer on
a farm probably worth less than half that much. To try to
collect the interest, I made a number of trips to the farm
over the years. It was a losing battle., I nave forgotten the
details of the finsl outcome, but I know the Zank took took

quite a lic«ing.

The saddest part was that Mr. X had an cutstanding wife....."

" ERoEoE R R OR R RS RS RS T E R FA R

Bventually this led to the situation where Marine Midland
came in. we were really the premature baby of the Marine
Midland Eanks. The Baniing Department, under Chisf Zxaminer

Fred Holtzer, had been rather lax in following up on the

condition of our bank and suddenly discovered that the sit-
uation was not teoo good; so thay decreed that the bank snould

hhave a 375.00 asssssment per share. Back in those days, ths
Par-Yalue of the stock was $100.00 a share, and the owner of
the stoex wWas liable for an assessment of an egual amcunt

of $100,00., Zome of the people did not want to put 375.00
more inte each stock, so that stock was bouzht up by officers
of the Marine Trust Company of Buffalo, which was then an
individual bank. a4nd it was, as I remember it, 2 jear or a

year and a hall, maybe two ysars later when lMarine Midland

Group of Lanxs came into being. 30 I always figured that we

Wwera the preamaturs baby of the Marine Midland Eanks. When

i

the Marine tcok the Orleans County Trust Company over, they

sent Tom reard, who had been a lMarine Trust Bank Manager in

Buffalo, down to run the Albion Eank., He , along with the

help of Dr. Cramer the Vice-President, operatel the bank ss

an individual tank. It was owned except for each Director's
"oualifying sharea" and contrdliled by Harine Midland, but still
an individusl bank back in those days; a member of the iarine

Midland Group of Eanks,
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I had become the Assistant Secretary of the bBank, the second
active officer, under Tom Heard as Secretarj. We were a banx
of one million deposits, where the Citizens National Danx was
three million. Of course most of the people did their banking
at the Citizens EBank here in Albion,

One of the things that brought about financial trouble in
the Orleans County Trust Company was that the 0fficers and
Directors had made loans to try to get business away from ths
@itizens Bank, and their loans had not turned out too well.

THE CLOSIXG OF THE CITIZEXNS NATIONAL ZDANK

Back in 1932 was the time the Citizens bank closed. A man
who worked in Medina at some plant,asked if he could leave
early to come to Albion becauss he heard there wWas a run on
the Citizens National Bank, and ne wanted to get his money
out. Actually this was the thing which started the run on the
Eank. I shall nsver forget - Judson Curtis was the Fresident,

Harry Colburn was Cashier, and young son Bill Curtis had coms

home from college and had started in the Eank, Eill came over

to our Bank in mid=-afternoon. I'1l never forget his coming in;
he was not a goodlooking fellow but he -~ the only way 1 could
ever describe nim was that he looked like a walking dead men.

His face was so drawn! He told us that they were having a

run on the bank., We immsdiately gave him half of the currency

that we had in ocur vault. By the next morning, the Brink's

zank Currency truck was tringing down currency from the Feders

8
reserve in Bufflalo. My Father had always done busgsiness at the
Citizens Banx all those yesars,., He happened to come into our
bankx that afternoon, and I told him what was going to happen
tomorrow}and I asked nim to go over to the Citizens bank ana
find out tha route from the four corners that would best get
the Brinks truck to the back door of the Citizens Zank; wnicn

he did.So, the next morning Dad was out there in front of ocur
S

bank ready to take the EBrinks truck over to the Citizens Bank,
well, we had lots of money that day - currency that we piled
iid 1ike-

up and displayed at our windows. The Citizens ban« d
wise. The problem was, having learned our lesson the hard way,
we had bscome very strict with ocur leosns, e tried te mass

very sure that they werse repaid once every jear. When a farmer

came into the Citizens Barn« to pay his $3,00C. loan, an Ufficer
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would say,"how Frank, why don't you instead of paying this
loan off, why don't you continus your loan and secure it --
buy some other stocks, and secure it with stocks". Well, that's
what he did. A lot of them did this. Then when the "crash"
came and stocks went down to practically nothing, the bank

nhad to call the loans which the farmers couldn't pay because
they no longer had the cash , and the stocks that had pledged
as collateral had suddenly lozt their value due to the Stocx
Market "erash". And that was actually what closed the Citizens
Eank; outside of the fact that the people persisted in keeping
running on =» it.

We lived on North lain 3treet, and at 7:30 the next morning
we heard Pontiacs,which had a pecullar whine to them, coming
in from the north country; and I said to Doris,"This is golinz
to be a bad day!" In spite of all pleas,they kept running on
the bBank, so in order tec make it eguitable that everyons would

get his fair share, the National Eank authorities closed the

Citizens NWational bBank,

The first liguidator sent here by the National EBanking
q b f =

Authority, was a Mr. Faterson, a very well known, capable,

likeable man way up in the organization. The (Citizens Bank hsaa
put up all its Government Donds, and its zood securities, to
borrow money from the Federsgl neserve Eank,., 30 they had nothing
more to go on, and that was one of the features that caused

the closing. Originally the Liquidator had no place tc go to
re-finance the mortgages, so just after this liquidation had
started, the Federal Land Eank liberalized, putting on an
additional Land Zanx Cormissioners' loan of 15%, which made

it possible for the farmers to re-finance their farm mortgages
and pay back part of their loans to the Citizens bank.

The Home Owners Loan was inititated and set up in Laahi*;::n

to take the loans of home owners. Now, with the setting up
of these two outlets, the liquidator was able tc gst in money
rather rapidly.

G AN | S ) st ey R —
TIGHT MONEY SITUATION RZLIEVED by HAZINE MIOLAND ACTICN

]
y

liow the Marine iMidland offered toc take over some of the
a

assets of the Citizens Rank and pay 5U% dividends on the banking

accountants of all Citizens Eank Depositors which the controller
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The way this worked was that we went to ths Citizens Bank ard

looked over their mortgazes and loans, Walter tlodszett, wWho

was the Produce Jealsr operating under the name of Harrison
Blodgett, Inc., knew the farm people of this whole area;
Walter used to come with us (the Orleans County Trust Company
officers) night after night , and we would work until 12: 390
or 1 o'clock going over the loans and deciding which ones we
could more safely take.These Citizens Bank assats were taken
on & re-purchase agreement plan whereby as the rReceiver of
the Citizens Bank got money in and cffered to tradaiwe gould
take back the assets which we decided we did not want to keegp.
When we refused to bring vack any more assets, the ones that
we had kept became ocurs. Out of this deal the bank eventually
paid some, I think it was over 96% to the depositors.

The story was all around that the Marine iidland had closz21
the Citizens Bank. There was nothing anymore untrue tnan that!
Eut that reflects the way those sort of things can worx out.
In fact if it hadn't besen for Marine making this dividend
available to the Citizens' customers, this country would havs
been in greater financial trouble. It was a record in Nationsal
Banking history of a dividend being paid within a month of
the time @& banx closed.

How at the game time, the otner banks in the county were all
running into difficulty. The tuo Medina banks, the Union

bank and the Central Ean<,both closed. The bank in Holley

c¢losed and I'm not positive about the bank in Lyndonville,

but I'm pretty sure that they were closed for a short time.
we were the only bank in Urleans County that was open, and
people came to the CGrleans Jounty Trust Company from all over
the county. I think at one time I probably knew nearly half
of the people in Urlsans County bescause they came here to
bank and to cash their checks. This was the only plasce avail-

able to them. The Albicon Citizens Nationsl Cank, and the

LS

Union Bank in lbedina botn remained cleosed. Marine Midlanc

gventually tocox over the (Central bank in Medina.

It was generally known that wWatson F. bapry, who was the

Frezident of the Central tank, and his sscond wife, Pearl

Timmarman, each of whom had larze estates of their own,

'Y
o
t
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their money into the bank so that the depositors would get
as much as possible. These two people resally gave away their
personal fortunes for the relisf of the depositors of their
owWwn bank.

After my having been there twenty years, people walking
right by Tom Heard and coming to me and having confidence in
me, built up his emmity. He would take short-cuts to embarrass
me., I would bring a loan before the officers committes. Tom
would see that it got turned down and I would have to so inform
the applicant. Then Tom would get the party in and make the
loan himself without calling me in on it. 5o, finally I
resigned.

The Dirsctors gave me two months to look for another job

and I never will forget Director F. A, Reed coming in and

giving me the devil for still working there when I should be
out looking for a job. I had a chance to be Assistant Office
Manager to Eastman Kodak State Street, the turning down of

which was the biggest mistake 1 ever made. I went instead as

Office Manager of a War Plant of Genersl Railway Signal, the

Genesee-Lincoln Plant, which mads turrets; a secret process
making turrets for the B-29. There wers 725 people in the
office under my supervisicn, It was a wonderful experience
and I was highly complimented by the management for my ability
in teaching people who had no idea of book-keeping, how to
keep their records straight. At the end of the war (WW II)
they wanted me to continus and liquidate. I was there two and
a half years.

In the meantime, I'd found out that Graflex was locking for
a Credit lManager. Graflex made the newsman's favorite SFPEED
GRAPHIC CAMERA. I went tc Graflex as Credit dManager. Kodak
had slways sold, billed, shipped, and collected for Graflex.
Graflex wanted to set up direct contracts with dealers, and
I opened up all of their naw dealerships, okayed every ship-
ment, and was fhere two snd a half years. Then they put out
a new model, 3peed Graphie, the governor on which did not

work properly, and the dealers returned them for raplacement.

This cost Grafliex a million and a quarter, so the Vlice-President

Harper, undser whom I worked, told me.



Me

e

Me

ke

Phillips 18

One day when Harper was on vacation, Mr. Whittatcker, the owner,
called me in and said,"iarcus, the cloth doesn't cut guite
broad enough". I was the third of the higher salaried emplo-
yees to bz let gol Guality Control Expert, then the Export
Manager whom they had gotten from BSouth America.

After leaving Graflex, I went back into banking, down in
Stuben County where I lived from 1950 to 1965. Then we sold
the "Wheeler Homestead" south-west of Kancn@ﬁhare we lived
and we came back to Hulbsrton, to the old Phillips 3tone
Homestead where we now live.

Marcus, is this old homestead the same place you had lived as
a young boy?

Thig is where my Grandparsnts lived when I was a boy. Dad
had built a n=w house up on the wWest side of the Main Street
in Hulberton where I was btorn and my family lived.

Did part of your home farm become part of the stone quarry

in Hulberton?

The Phillips Quarry was on the sast side of the road, back of
the farmstead buildings, and it was on the Fhillips land but
operated by John and William Balmforth. William Henry was the

quarry operator, and John the business manager.

After I retired in 3tuben County, I became head of the
ded Cross in Bath, New York for a year and a half. Then Doris,
who had been teaching first grade in Haverling &==h GSchool,
Bath for about 13 years, had a chance to transfer to Albion.
We moved in 1965 to the Fhillips Stone Homestead in Hulberton
where we live at the presant time,
You and Mrs, Phillips have celebrated quite a few years of
marriage together.
We have been married 53 y=ars, and we have just attended
my 55th Cornell Heunion.
That's beautiful! What are jou doing now to keep out of mis-
chief?
With an old farmstead, 1 have more things waiting for me to
do than I'11 ever be able %o catch up on.

You gare active in other organizations throughout the county.
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P Yes, I am a Director of Nutrifare Program, A Director of

the Hastern Orlesns Community Center in Holley, also of

Home Services - which is the "Meals-on-Wheels Frogram", I

zuess that about makes ik, I was President of the Albion

Lions Club. I was the organizing Fresident of a new Lions

Club started in Avoeca, New Yori.

I grew up a member of the lethodist Church in Hulberton
until I was married when I transferred to the Eaptist Church
in Albion to join my wife's church. I was made Invested
Funds Treasurer with $65,000. in Investsd Funds for over
twenty years, until I moved to Stuben County. There we joined
the Presbyterian Church in Batn and I was Clerk of the Ses-
sion there for six and a half years until the newly-estab-
lished rotation forced my retirement.

For some time I have bteen a Director of the Cobblestone

Socisty and we are Charter lMembers of the Crleans County

Historical Associstion.
The other day I talked with a past-middle-age man who

told me, very happily, that when he was 16 years old he came
into the Bank and that I had opened up his first bank account
for him. Apparently, people have always had confidence in me.
They've told me their troubles and their joys. And their
confidences never have besen spread to anyone!

¥Me That's beautiful, liarcus.

B While I was running a National Bank in Greenwood, New Yors,

it became an Office of the Security Trust Company. The S3Sescu-

rity Trust Company was one of the first companies to bring
2ll of their day's work into the main office in Rochester
where it was posted. Hy friends in the other banks used to
¥id me about having to call up Rochester to find out a
customer's balance. I used to say,"All right boys, we're
getting the bugs out of our system. It won't be long before
you will be doing it". And that's just exactly the way it
woriked out, because centralized boock-keeping came into
being shortly after that. The Security Trust Company had the

bugs out of theirs before the others started!
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(End of taped interview). This taps was transcribed by islen
McAllister of HMedina, N.Y. After Marcus Phillips had made some
additions and some deletions, final typing was done by H. MeAllister.



